
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 19 January 2022 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Council Agenda - 27 January 2022 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council will be held at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 
27 January 2022 at the The Cumbrian Suite, Roundthorn Country House, Roundthorn, 
Penrith, CA11 8SJ. 
 
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting, we request that you contact 
Democratic Services to let us know.  Contact details are below*.  We would also 
request that wherever possible, those attending continue to wear face coverings 
and practice hand sanitising measures.  This is due to ongoing concerns in relation 
to the Covid pandemic.   
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 
 

3   Minutes   
 

RECOMMENDATION that the public minutes CI/40/11/21 to CI/57/11/21 of the 
meeting of Council held on 25 November 2021 be confirmed and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record of those proceedings (copies previously circulated). 
 

4   Chairman's Announcements   
 

5   Questions by the Public   
 

To receive questions from the public under Rule 10 of the Constitution 
 

6   Questions by Members   
 

To receive questions from Members under Rule 12 of the Constitution 
 

7   Motions on Notice   
 

To consider motions on notice under Rule 13 of the Constitution 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

 

8   Decision to Opt-in to the National Scheme for Audit Appointments  
(Pages 5 - 12) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR04/22 of the Assistant Director Finance & HR which 
seeks approval of this report which will ensure the efficient appointment of external 
auditors, if required, for the period covering the accounts from 1 April 2023. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Council Accept Public Sector Audit 
Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of 
external auditors to principal local government and police bodies for five financial 
years from 1 April 2023. 
 

9   Annual Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR05/22 of the Interim Director of Resources which seeks 
to undertake the annual review of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) and 
to decide whether the Scheme should be amended for 2022 – 23 or remain 
unchanged. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
for 2022-23 should remain unchanged from that in 2021-22.  
 
 

10   Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2021/22 Six-Monthly Review  
(Pages 17 - 22) 
 

To consider Report No: F50/21 of the Assistant Director Finance & HR which seeks 
to provide Members with a half-yearly report on the Strategy and Plan for Treasury 
Management during the Financial Year 2020/21.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: That the report be noted.  
 

11   Director of Resources Post  (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR03/22 of the Chief Executive which seeks to consider 
the resolutions of Human Resources and Appeals Committee in respect of the 
Interim Director of Resources.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: To agree to extend the current arrangements with the Interim 
Director of Resources until 30 June 2022. 
 

12   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

The next scheduled meeting of Council be confirmed as 24 February 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chairman – Councillor A Connell (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor D Banks (Independent Alliance Group) 
 
Councillors 

R Burgin, Liberal Democrat Group 
R Briggs, Conservative Group 
A Armstrong, Conservative Group 
P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
I Chambers, Conservative Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
J Derbyshire, Liberal Democrat Group 
P Dew, Conservative Group 
M Eyles, Liberal Democrat Group 
H Fearon, Conservative Group 
K Greenwood, Independent Alliance Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Holden, Liberal Democrat Group 
S Lancaster, Independent Group 
D Lawson, Green Group 
J C Lynch, Conservative Group 
E Martin, Conservative Group 
 

N McCall, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group 
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group 
W Patterson, Independent Alliance Group 
J Raine, Conservative Group 
M Robinson, Independent Alliance Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
M Rudhall, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Ryland, Independent Group 
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group 
G Simpkins, Liberal Democrat Group 
L Sharp, Labour Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
V Taylor, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Todd, Conservative Group 
M Tonkin, Independent Alliance Group 
D Wicks, Conservative Group 
C Atkinson, Conservative Group 
 

 

  
 

  
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Report No:  DoR04/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 

27 January 2022 

Decision to Opt-in to the National Scheme for Audit 
Appointments 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Assistant Director Finance & HR 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 Approval of this report will ensure the efficient appointment of external 
auditors, if required, for the period covering the accounts from 1 April 2023. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Council: 

Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and 
including the audit of the 2022/23 accounts. The Council opted into the 
‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment arrangements established 
by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the 
accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

3.2 PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 
audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. During autumn/winter 2021 all local government 
bodies need to make important decisions about their external audit 
arrangements from 2023/24. They have options to arrange their own 
procurement and make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with 
other bodies, or they can join and take advantage of the national collective 
scheme administered by PSAA. 

3.3 Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each 
financial year. The Council has three options; 

a) To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set 
out in the Act. 

b) To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 
procedures in the Act. 

c) To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a 

Page  5

Agenda Item 8



body designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’. 
The body currently designated for this role is Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA). 

In order to opt into the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a 
meeting of the Full Council and give notice to PSAA of the authority’s 
acceptance of the invitation by 11 March 2022. 

3.4 It is expected that, as a result of Local Government Reorganisation, this 
Council will cease to exist from 31 March 2023 and therefore will not need 
to appoint an external auditor for 2022/23 onwards. The decision for external 
audit for the proposed Westmorland and Furness Council will need to be 
appointed by the new Council, once created. However, it is advised that all 
councils undergoing reorganisation opt-in under this invitation to ensure 
continuity of external audit cover if, for some reason, the implementation 
of the new unitary authorities is delayed. 

The Appointed Auditor 

3.5 The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will 
undertake the statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the 
Council in each financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of 
practice and guidance. The appointed auditor is also responsible for 
investigating questions raised by electors and has powers and 
responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and statutory 
recommendations. 

3.6 The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose 
of the procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is 
sufficiently qualified and independent. The auditor must be registered to 
undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and 
employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the report 
below sets out, there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners. Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a 
new body with wider powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority 
(ARGA) during the course of the next audit contract. 

3.7 Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit 
services they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or 
overseen by third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly 

3.8 The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, 
which would require the Council to; 

a. Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone 
appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up by the 
council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 
majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent 
members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current 
and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and 
friends. This means that elected members would not have a majority 
input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the Council’s external audit. 

Page  6



b. Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 

 Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 
establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this would need to be constituted of 
wholly or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would 
be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the 
obligations of each council under the Act and the Council would need to 
liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for such an 
arrangement 

 The national auditor appointment scheme 

3.9 PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government 
under the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015. PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for 
the first appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 
2022/23. It is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt 
in for the next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to 
complete a procurement for audit services. PSAA is a not-for-profit 
organisation whose costs are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus 
distributed back to scheme members 

3.10 In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

a. the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for 
each of the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

b. appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 
formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is 
possible with other constraints; 

c. managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price 
criteria are satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help 
inform its detailed procurement strategy; 

d. ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they 
audit and managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the 
appointment period; 

e. minimising the scheme management costs and returning any 
surpluses to scheme members; 

f. consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the 
Council the opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

g. consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these 
reflect scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

h. ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once 
these have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing opinions. 

3.11 Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last 
awarded in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had 
been few changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been 
reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the 
national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The 

Page  7



resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018. 

3.12 During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector 
led to questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of 
their work. Four independent reviews were commissioned by Government: 
Sir John Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the 
audit regulator; the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit 
market; Sir Donald Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; 
and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of local authority financial reporting and 
external audit. The recommendations are now under consideration by 
Government, with the clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A 
new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and arrangements for system 
leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as 
other recommendations are implemented. 

3.13 The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 
measurable improvements in audit quality. This has created a major 
pressure for audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory 
requirements and expectations in every audit they undertake. By the time 
firms were conducting 2018/19 local audits during 2019, the measures they 
were putting in place to respond to a more focused regulator were clearly 
visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in audit quality, firms were 
requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to gain deeper 
levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, posing a 
threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only 
consequence of the FRC’s drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit 
work must also be paid for. As a result, many more fee variation claims 
have been needed than in prior years 

3.14 This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and 
retention challenges, the complexity of local government financial 
statements and increasing levels of technical challenges as bodies explore 
innovative ways of developing new or enhanced income streams to help 
fund services for local people. These challenges have increased in 
subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further significant pressure 
for finance and audit teams. 

3.15 None of these problems are unique to local government audit. Similar 
challenges have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and 
disappointing responses to tender invitations have been experienced during 
the past two years 

The Invitation 

3.16 PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 
2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the 
level of opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit 
firms and appoint a suitable firm to be the Council’s auditor. 

The next auditor procurement 

3.17 The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will: 

Page  8



a. seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the 
economies of scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant 
number of bodies; 

b. continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 
accordance with the published fee scale as amended following 
consultations with scheme members and other interested parties 
(pooling means that everyone within the scheme will benefit from the 
prices secured via a competitive procurement process – a key tenet 
of the national collective scheme); 

c. continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as 
a not- for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme 
members. In 2019 it returned a total £3.5m to relevant bodies and in 
2021 a further £5.6m was returned. 

3.18 PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms 
will be able to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they 
can match their available resources and risk appetite to the contract for 
which they bid. They will be required to meet appropriate quality standards 
and to reflect realistic market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale 
fees and the supporting information provided about each audit. Where 
regulatory changes are in train which affect the amount of audit work 
suppliers must undertake, firms will be informed as to which developments 
should be priced into their bids. 

3.19 The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit 
Practice (currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the 
financial statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of 
auditing standards regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local 
audits irrespective of whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s 
national scheme or chooses to make its own separate arrangements. The 
requirements are mandatory; they shape the work auditors undertake and 
have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

3.20 There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities 
and other relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a 
local procurement exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the 
national procurement exercise, subject to the need to manage any local 
independence issues. Local firms cannot be invited to bid. Local 
procurements must deliver the same audit scope and requirements as a 
national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory responsibilities. 

 Assessment of options 

3.21 If the Council did not opt in, and there was a delay in the creation of the new 
unitary authorities beyond 1 April 2023, there would be a need to establish 
an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The 
auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council itself, and the members 
of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as defined 
by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 
appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 
their close families and friends. This means that elected members would not 
have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to 

Page  9



award a contract for the Council’s external audit. 

3.22 Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 
establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of 
wholly or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would 
be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the 
obligations of each Council under the Act and the Council would need to 
liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for such an 
arrangement. 

3.23 These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the 
Council, and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement 
would be likely to result in a more costly service. It would also be more 
difficult to manage quality and independence requirements through a 
local appointment process. The Council is unable to influence the scope 
of the audit and the regulatory regime inhibits the Council’s ability to affect 
quality. 

3.24 Opting-into the national offer provides the appointment of an independent 
auditor with limited administrative cost to the Council. By joining the scheme, 
the Council would be acting with other councils to optimise the opportunity 
to influence the market that a national procurement provides. 

3.25 Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 
requires that a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting of the Council 
(meeting as a whole). The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s 
invitation in the form specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 
March 2022). PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early 
February 2022. It expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then 
consult with authorities on the appointment of auditors so that it can make 
appointments by the statutory deadline of 31 December 2022. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority 

5 Consultation 

5.1 The Revenue Portfolio Holder was consulted on this report. The Accounts & 
Governance Committee are reviewing the report before recommending to 
Council. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

Page  10



6.1.2 It is likely that current base external audit fee levels will increase when the 
current contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, 
requiring more audit work. There are also concerns about capacity and 
sustainability in the local (external) audit market. Opting into a national 
scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as realistic as 
possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering into a 
large-scale collective procurement arrangement. If the national scheme is not 
used, additional resource would be needed to establish an auditor panel and 
conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement exercise is completed, it 
is not possible to state what additional funds may be required for audit fees 
from 2023/24. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The relevant legislation is the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
the subordinate Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. Under 
the provisions the Council is obliged to: 

- appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later 
than 31 December in the preceding year 

- follow the process contained therein 

- allocate the appointment as a function of Council 

6.2.2 Through the Act and the Regulations, the Secretary of State has appointed 
PSAA as the appointing person for the purposes of the audit function. 
Through the proposal to accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation 
to opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors, the 
Council will be meeting its legal requirement with regards to the 
appointment of a local auditor as a result of the above legal framework. 

6.2.3 The process detailed within the report that will be taken by PSAA to 
appoint the provider will comply with the procurement requirements and is 
therefore considered a compliant route of appointment in procurement terms 

6.2.4 The continuity of the arrangements for external audit is a matter that will be 
raised at the inaugural Shadow Authority meeting 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 This report has no direct human resource implications. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no direct effects on the environment including carbon emissions 
and ecosystems. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity No implications 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

No implications 

Page  11



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Crime and Disorder No implications 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

No implications 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That the Council fails 
to appoint an auditor in 
accordance with the 
requirements and 
timing specified in local 
audit legislation 

Reputational damage 
and additional costs to 
carry out separate 
exercise 

To opt-in to the 
sector-led approach 
through PSAA 

That the Council fails 
to achieve value for 
money in the appointing 
process 

Additional expenses 
incurred 

To opt-in to the 
sector-led approach 
through PSAA 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 All possible options have been laid out in the report for consideration. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To ensure that the Council (or Unitary) has an auditor for its accounts from 
1 April 2023 if required. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 15 January 2022 (Deputy s151) 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 17 January 2022 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: None  

Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance & HR 

Page  12



Report No:  DoR05/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 

27 January 2022 

Annual Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To undertake the annual review of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
(CTRS) and to decide whether the Scheme should be amended for 2022-23, 
or remain unchanged. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2022-23 
should remain unchanged from that in 2021-22. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 Eden District Council is a Billing Authority for Council Tax. Under the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS), qualifying claimants have their Council Tax 
liability reduced. This results in a loss of Council Tax income to the Council. 

3.2 When CTRS was introduced in April 2013, the Council opted for the then 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) ‘default’ 
scheme. The Council could have reduced the cost by reducing the level of 
Council Tax Reduction for certain claimant groups. It chose not to do so 
because: 

 As the regulations require that pensioners have to be protected, a net 
saving of 10% would have required a 20% saving on non-pensioner 
claimants; 

 There was concern about the impact of any lessening in Council Tax 
Reduction, given the other welfare reforms, especially in relation to low 
income working households; 

 There was concern that increasing the Council Tax liability on those with a 
low income would adversely impact on the Council Tax collection rate; and 

 The financial cost could be more than mitigated by using the new Council 
Tax flexibilities, for example, removing the 10% reduction on second 
homes. 

  

Page  13

Agenda Item 9



3.3 There is a requirement under the amended Local Government Finance Act 
1992 that: 

 For each financial year, each billing authority must consider whether to revise 
its Scheme, or to replace it with another Scheme. 

 The Authority must make any revision to its Scheme, or any replacement 
Scheme, no later than 11 March in the financial year preceding that for which 
the revision or replacement Scheme is to have effect. 

 The final decision on whether a Scheme is changed must be a decision of 
Council. 

3.4 Whilst some authorities have moved away from the default scheme many like 
Eden have kept it as it protects those taxpayers that are on low income but 
still have to pay some Council Tax. 

3.5 The impact of LGR means that any change would be for a single year. In 
addition, both Barrow and South Lakeland continue to operate the default 
scheme. A change to the scheme would therefore complicate the setting of 
CTRS for the new Westmoreland and Furness Council. 

3.6 The current CTRS caseload is: 

 Claimant 

Numbers 

Pension Age 1,079  

Working Age 1,736 

Total 2,815 

 The caseload at the same point last year was 2,844  

3.7 For 2022-23 the total estimated reduction in the Council Tax Base resulting 
from CTRS is 1,677. Eden’s Band D Council Tax Amount is £200.75 which 
means a reduction in Council Tax income of £336,753 of which £214,788 
relates to working age claimants. The reduction in the Council Tax Base also 
impacts on the income from Council Tax for the County Council, Police and 
Crime Commissioner and to a lesser extent Town and Parish Councils. 

3.8 For the reasons set out above it is therefore proposed that the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2022-23 remains unchanged from that in 2021-22 (the 
full scheme is available on the Council’s website but is not included in the 
report as it is 185 pages). 

3.9 It should be noted that the applicable amounts and premiums on which the 
calculations are based are uprated each year in line with the uprating of the 
similar provisions in the Housing Benefit regulations. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

Page  14



 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Healthy, safe and secure corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 As the scheme is not changing, there is no obligation to consult on the 
continuation of the existing scheme. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 The cost of the existing CTRS is built into the Council’s MTFP 6.2. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 These are set out in the body of the report.  

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.  

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no Environmental implications.  

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity The Council has to have regard to the elimination 
of unlawful discrimination and harassment and 
the promotion of equality under the Equality Act 
2010 and related statutes. 

An Equality and Diversity Assessment was 
undertaken for the current Scheme, but if any 
changes are recommended, that Assessment will 
be reviewed. 

If changes are made to the Scheme it will be 
necessary to assess changes to evaluate the 
impact on people who are vulnerable. The DCLG 
has defined vulnerable households as those with 
a carer, children aged less than five years, or 
those with a disability. Protections would need to 
be introduced and a Scheme with multiple 
protected groups also results in a Scheme that is 
more complex to administer and for customers to 
understand. 

Page  15



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

No implications 

Crime and Disorder No implications 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

No implications 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

There are no major 
risks with the proposed 
approach of continuing 
with a CTRS based on 
the Default Scheme 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The proposal to continue the current CTRS ensures that residents on low 
incomes continue to be supported to meet their Council Tax liabilities. Also the 
scheme will be revised as part of the new proposed local authority next year. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 6 December 2021 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 10 December 2021 

Background Papers:  

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources 

Page  16



1  

Report No: F50/21 

Eden District Council  

Accounts & Governance 

22 December 2021  

Council  

27 January 2022  

Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2021/22 

Six-Monthly Review  

Portfolio:  Resources  

Report from:  Assistant Director Finance & HR  

Wards:  All Wards  

 OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  

1 Purpose 

1.1 To provide Members with a half-yearly report on the Strategy and Plan for Treasury 

Management during the financial year 2020/21. 

2 Recommendation 

  That the report be noted. 

3 Report Details  

3.1  At Council on 25 February 2021, the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 

2021/22 was approved (CI/77/02/21). Members should be briefed at least twice a year 

on the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. The requirement to do this is in line 

with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code (2018) and is included in the Council’s 

Treasury Management Policy Document (available via the Council’s website).  

3.2  The revised four year Capital Programme for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25 was 

approved at Council on 25 November 2021 (Item 17 Report F39/21). There were no 

changes required to borrowing limits identified. The Capital Programme will be 

reviewed again as part of the budget setting process for 2022/23 and any required 

changes in borrowing limits will be included in the Treasury Management Strategy for 

2022/23, both to be presented to Council in February 2022. 

 3.3  There are no material changes to the Strategy or Plan required following the first six 

months of 2021/22. All investment activity has been in line with the approved strategy. 

As already noted, no further borrowing has been required, or is anticipated to be 

required, to support the Capital Programme.  

3.4  The audit of the Statement of Accounts for 20/21 has not yet been completed and the 

final outturn against the prudential indicators presented in Appendix A has been 

prepared using the draft outturn figures which are being presented to Accounts & 

Governance Committee on 22 December 2021.   

  

Page  17

Agenda Item 10



2  

4  Policy Framework  

4.1  The Council has four corporate priorities which are:  

• Sustainable  

• Healthy, Safe and Secure;  

• Connected; and 

• Creative.  

4.2  This report supports the sustainable corporate priority.  

5  Consultation  

5.1  The report is for noting and does not contain any decisions that require wider 

consultation.  

6  Implications  

6.1  Financial and Resources  

6.1.1  Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 

made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 

2019/23 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2  Determining and pursuing a suitable Strategy will ensure that the expected budget 

income from interest on investments for the year 2021/22 is achieved.  

6.2  Legal  

6.2.1 There are no legal implications.  

6.3  Human Resources  

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.  

6.4  Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications.  

6.5  Statutory Considerations  

Consideration:  Details of any implications and 

proposed measures to address:  

Equality and Diversity  No implications  

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact  No implications  

Crime and Disorder  No implications  

Children and Safeguarding  No implications  

  

Page  18



3  

6.6  Risk Management  

Risk  Consequence  Controls Required  

The main risks in treasury 
management are financial ones.  
These are identified in the 
Council’s Treasury Management 
Practices and the main risks in 
these activities are:  

• liquidity;  

• markets or investment;  

• inflation;  

• credit and counterparty;  

legal and regulatory.  

Poor practices 

implemented, diminished 

interest returns, loss of 

capital invested, poor 

liquidity (funds available 

when required).  

The Council’s strategies 

guard against most of 

these risks.  

7 Other Options Considered  

7.1  No other options have been considered.  

8  Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation  

8.1  The reasons for the recommendations are to make any updates required to the 

approved 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy to ensure the controls around 

investment and borrowing activity remain appropriate.  

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 15 December 2021 (Deputy) 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 16 December 2021 

 

Background Papers:  Treasury Management Strategy, approved at Council, 25 February 

2021, available via the Council agenda, report Reference 

CI/77/02/21  

  CIPFA’s Treasury Management and Prudential Codes  

  Treasury Management Practices document available via the website  

Appendices:  Appendix A - Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2020/21 Outturn  

Contact Officer:  Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance & HR  

  

Page  19



4  

Appendix A 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2020/21 Outturn  

1.  Background  

1.1  There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to 

have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code and Prudential Code for Capital  

Finance in Local Authorities (the “CIPFA Prudential Code”) when setting and 

reviewing their Prudential Indicators. Authorities are required to report actual 

performance against these indicators and this is presented below.  

2.  Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement  

2.1  This is a key indicator of prudence.  In order to ensure that, over the medium term, 

borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that the 

external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital 

financing requirement (CFR) in the preceding year, plus the estimates of any 

additional increases to the capital financing requirement for the current and next two 

financial years.  

  Table 1: Gross debt and the Capital Financing Requirement  

 2019/20  2020/21  2020/21  

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £’000  £’000  £’000  

CFR closing  363  2,139 363 

Gross Borrowing  28  1,800 0 

Under/over borrowed (-/+)  -323  -339 -363 

2.2  Table 1 shows that the Council had no difficulty meeting this requirement in 2020/21, 

nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years.    

3.  Capital Expenditure  

3.1  This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure is 

reflected within the Council’s Treasury strategy:  

  Table 2: Capital Expenditure  

 2019/20  2020/21  2020/21 

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £000  £’000  £’000  

Capital Expenditure  1,613  4,440 2,485 

  The full details of the capital expenditure and the variances against the capital budgets 

for 2020/21 are included within the capital outturn report, presented to Accounts & 

Governance Committee on 22 December 2021.  

4.  Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  

4.1  This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of capital 

expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet 

financing costs.  The definition of financing costs is set out in the Prudential Code.  

4.2  The ratio is based on costs net of investment income:  

  

Page  20



5  

 Table 3: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  

 2019/20  2020/21  2020/21  

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £000  %  £’000  

Ratio of Financing Costs 

to Net Revenue Stream  
-5.6%  -3.9%  -5.2%  

  The negative value shows that EDC have net financing income rather than costs. 

5. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  

5.1  The authorised limit and operational boundary set maximum level of external 

borrowing for the Council. There was no new borrowing during 2020/21; the level of 

external debt (maximum balance during the period of £nil) was within these limits 

(authorised limit £7,139,000, operational boundary £339,000).  

6.  Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code  

6.1  This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best 

practice. The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management 

Code for 2020/21.  

7.  Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 

Exposure  

7.1  These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to 

changes in interest rates.  This Council calculates these limits on net principal 

outstanding sums (fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments).  

7.2  The indicators provide freedom to manage the portfolio in line with the needs of the 

Council and the instruments available in the market. Borrowings were all fixed interest 

instalment type loans. Investments were a mixture of fixed and variable instruments.  

Table 4: Interest rate exposure  

Interest Rate  

Exposures  

2019/20 

Actual  

£000  

2020/21 

Estimate  

£000  

2020/21  

Actual  

£000  

 %  %  %  

Upper Limit for Fixed 

Interest Rate Exposure 

on Debt  

100  100  100  

Upper Limit for Fixed 

Interest Rate Exposure 

on Investments  

-100%  -100  -100  

Net Fixed Exposure  0%  0%  0  

Upper Limit for Variable 

Interest Rate Exposure 

on Debt  

0  0  0  

Upper Limit for Variable 

Interest Rate Exposure 

on Investments  

-100%  -100  -100  

Net Variable Exposure  -0%  -0%  0  

Page  21



6  

8.  Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

8.1  This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt 

needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to 

protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 

particular, in the course of the next ten years.  

8.2  It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each 

period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate.  The maturity of 

borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can 

require payment. The total level of external debt outstanding at 31 March 2021 was 

£0, so this is not judged to present a significant risk in terms of cash flow. Table 5: 

Maturity structure of external borrowing  

Maturity Structure of 

Fixed Rate Borrowing  

At 31/3/20  At 31/3/21  Lower  

Limit for  

2021/22  

Upper  

Limit for  

2021/22  

Under 12 months  0%  0%  0%  100%  

12 months and within 24 

months  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

24 months and within  

5 years  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

5 years and within  

10 years  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

10 years and above  0%  0%  0%  100%  

9.  Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums Invested over 364 Days  

9.1  The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise 

as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested.  

Table 6: Sums invested for more than 364 days:  

 2019/20  2020/21  2020/21  

  Actual  Limit  Actual  

 £000  £’000  £’000  

Upper Limit for total 

principal sums invested 

over 364 days  

4,199  8,000  4,169 

  

This Upper Limit represents investment in CCLA Fund. This valuation of EDC investment in 

this fund is currently £4,579k as at 30 November 2021. 

Page  22



Report No:  DoR03/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 

27 January 2022 

Director of Resources Post 

Report from: Chief Executive 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To consider the resolutions of Human Resources and Appeals Committee in 
respect of the Interim Director of Resources. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 To agree to extend the current arrangements with the Interim Director of 
Resources until 30 June 2022. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 At its meeting on 29 April 2021, Council agreed to extend the current 
arrangements with Mr Paul Sutton, the Interim Director of Resources until 
31 December 2021. 

3.2 Since the Governments’ announcement in July 2021 of its preferred options 
for Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in Cumbria, considerable work 
has been undertaken by officers at all levels within the Council, including the 
Interim Director of Resources and this will continue well into 2022, 2023 and 
beyond. 

3.3 As well as being a Chief Officer post, the Director of Resources is the 
Council’s Section 151 Officer which is a statutory role and makes a significant 
contribution to the Corporate Leadership Team and also to the LGR 
programme alongside counterparts from other Cumbrian Councils. 

3.4 If the post weren’t to be filled or there were a gap between post holders, there 
would be a risk to the council of not being able to deliver either a statutory 
function or its strategic priorities and Eden may not be represented fully at the 
appropriate level in the LGR programme.  

3.5 In addition to the above, the main factor in considering the extension of the 
contract is that the Interim Director of Resources will be the Returning Officer 
for the upcoming elections in May 2022 to establish the new shadow authority. 
This is a statutory role which needs to be filled and has previously been 
delivered by the current post holder so a continuation would provide the vital 
knowledge and experience with as little disruption as possible. 

  

Page  23

Agenda Item 11



3.6 As previously reported to Council, the options for recruiting a Director of 
Resources are: 

 to make a permanent appointment 

 to appoint for a fixed term. 

 to continue the current interim arrangements until 30 June 2022. 

3.7 After assessing the market and potential availability of candidates, it is not 
considered likely that we would be able to recruit a suitable calibre of person 
to either a permanent or fixed term contract due to the uncertainties and lack 
of job security which LGR brings. 

3.8 The expected timescales to recruit into a post at this level would be at least 3 
months, possibly 6 months and therefore presents a risk to the council of the 
post not being filled for a significant period of time and also not having the 
continuity if the post holder changes. 

3.9 In addition to the initial recruitment costs, an employee (either permanent or 
fixed term) who has continuous LG service of over 2 years would be eligible to 
receive a redundancy payment and if the appointed person is over 55, a 
pension strain cost would be payable if they were made redundant. 

3.10 At its meeting on 21 December 2021, the HR & Appeals Committee voted that 
the Chief Executive open discussions with the current Interim Director of 
Resources for the continuation of the current arrangement until 30 June 2022. 

3.11 Discussions with Mr Paul Sutton have indicated that he would be willing to 
stay in the Interim Director of Resources post until at least June 2022 primarily 
to act as the Returning Officer. The costs identified in 6.1.5 below therefore 
reflect that period. If an extension of the contract were considered necessary 
beyond June 2022, a further report would be presented to the HR & Appeals 
Committee for further consideration. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 The delivery of these corporate priorities is a key aspect of the Director of 
Resources role. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 HR and Appeals Committee have been consulted and made the 
recommendations to be considered. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

Page  24



6.1.2 Current Budget 

 The 21/22 revised budget allows for the full costs of the current arrangement 
until 31/3/22. (ie £15,000 per month). The proposed budget for 2022/23 is 
currently the permanent post budget of £96,136 (ie £8,011 per month). 

6.1.3  Costs 

 Initial recruitment costs are anticipated to be circa £25,000 for appointing a 
permanent or fixed term employed member of staff. The current arrangement 
with the Interim Director costs c£15,000 per month (an additional £6.5k per 
month above budget). 

6.1.4 Additional Costs of Permanent or Fixed Term appointment – Interim 
extended for 3 months 

 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 

 1/1/22 to 31/3/22 1/4/22 to 30/6/22 1/7/22 to 31/3/23 

Budget £45,000 £24,033 £72,100 

Salary / Agency Cost £45,000 £24,033 £72,100 

Recruitment Cost £25,000   

Additional Budget required £25,000 £0 £0 

 Additional costs would be incurred in this year (2021/22) with no additional 
costs in 22/23 assuming that the post could be filled at the current salary. 
These additional costs would be funded from General Fund Reserves. 

6.1.5 Additional Costs to Continue arrangement with Interim Director of 
Resources 

 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 

 1/1/22 to 31/3/22 1/4/22 to 30/6/22 1/7/22 to 31/3/23 

Budget £45,000 £24,033 £72,100 

Salary / Agency Cost £45,000 £45,000 Not yet determined 

Additional Budget required £0 £20,967  

 The additional £20,655 would be taken from the budget for the remainder of 
the 2022/23 year. This would leave £55,380 budget for the remainder 9 
months of the year. This would cover a further 3 month extension to the 
current arrangement if required, leaving the post unfunded for the remaining 6 
months of the year unless further funding could be allocated. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The legal implications are set out in the body of the report. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 The HR implications are set out in the body of the report. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

Page  25



6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity None arising from this report. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

None arising from this report. 

Crime and Disorder None arising from this report. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

None arising from this report. 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That the Authority has 
may not be able to 
provide a statutory 
function and also 
management capacity 
to operate effectively, 
at a time of significant 
pressures including 
Local Government 
Reorganisation.  

The Council is unable/ 
ineffective in delivering 
all of its statutory 
responsibilities as well 
as responding to 
additional pressures. 

Implement the most 
appropriate option for 
recruiting a Director of 
Resources. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 The options considered are set out in this report. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To ensure that the Council has the required senior leadership and 
management capacity and capability to operate effectively. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 14 January 2022 (Deputy) 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 17 January 2022 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Ian Frost, Interim Chief Executive 

Page  26


	Agenda
	8 Decision to Opt-in to the National Scheme for Audit Appointments
	9 Annual Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	10 Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2021/22 Six-Monthly Review
	11 Director of Resources Post

